
      PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL 
      JOINT MEETING WITH THE PRESCOTT 
      FRONTIER DAYS®, INC., BOARD 
      WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2012 
      PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF THE PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL WITH THE 
PRESCOTT FRONTIER DAYS®, INC., BOARD held on WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 
2012, in the Danny Freeman Building on Rodeo Drive, Prescott, Arizona. 
 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 Diane Judge-Cox, President, Prescott Frontier Days®, Inc. 
 
 BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Diane Judge-Cox, President; Joe Butner, Vice 

President; Directors Joe Schwartz, Dick Busby, Marty Borgelt, Rennie Anderson, 
Kemp Cheves and Tina Cox-Prenovost. 

 
 STAFF PRESENT:  J.C.Trujillo, General Manager. 
 
2.  ROLL CALL – Prescott City Council  
 Elizabeth A. Burke, Prescott City Clerk 
 
  PRESENT      ABSENT 
  

Mayor Kuykendall     Councilman Hanna 
Councilman Arnold  
Councilman Blair    

 Councilman Carlow  
 Councilman Kuknyo    
 Councilman Lamerson  
 
 STAFF: Craig McConnell, City Manager; Gary D. Kidd, City Attorney; 

Elizabeth A. Burke, City Clerk. 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Attendees recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
4. Presentation of Annual Rodeo Report by Prescott Frontier Days®, Inc. – 

Overview of 2011 Rodeo, impact, and usage of grounds 
 
 President Judge Cox reviewed the Annual Rodeo Report for 2011, Exhibit A 

attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 
 



Prescott City Council – Joint Meeting with the 
Prescott Frontier Days®, Inc., Board – February 1, 2012                                        Page 2 

 
 Mr. Trujillo said that they do not do just the rodeo and he has been charged with 

bringing in year-round events. He presented a list of some of the events from last 
year and what has already booked for 2012, Exhibit B attached hereto and made 
a part hereof. 

 
 He said that in the rodeo business of today, bringing in new contestants and 

cowboys has become a problem, especially in the rough stock events. He said 
that contestants are fewer and fewer so the PRCA has put in a lot of money to 
training the young participants. 

 
 Mr. Trujillo said that the theme for this year’s parade, celebrating both 125 years 

of the rodeo and 100 years of the state of Arizona, is “Where it all Began” and 
they have asked the entire Yavapai Tribe to lead the parade as the Grand 
Marshal. 

 
 Councilman Blair asked if they were trying to take someone like Harley, being a 

Yavapai Tribe member, to bring as the Grand Marshal. Mr. Trujillo noted that 
Harley has been the Grand Marshal in prior years so he went to Ernie Jones, 
Chairman of the Tribe, inviting him and the Tribe, noting that they would leave it 
up to them as to who they want to represent them as Grand Marshal. 

 
 President Judge Cox said that they do things other than rodeo—they give back to 

the community. Their motto is, “We rodeo, we give.” She said that they give to 
the community in many ways, hosting 4-H and FAA expositions, and providing 
scholarships for students. They give Tough Enough to Wear Pink proceeds to 
local cancer patients who need food, gas cards, medication, wigs, etc. and it 
stays local. 

 
 Mr. Trujillo said that being the World’s Oldest Rodeo they feel as an organization 

that they need to give back to the community. He said that Prescott Frontier 
Days® started what modern day rodeo is today. They set the rules and invited 
cowboys, and charged admissions. They created fans, and the rodeo today was 
derived from Prescott Frontier Days®. When they bring in the High School rodeo 
they don’t charge anything except a cleaning fee, and most all facilities around 
the country do that to promote the sport of rodeo. This year they will have the 
Junior High and High School for four days. 

 
 Councilman Carlow asked if they did any specific marketing. President Judge 

Cox referred Councilman Carlow back to page 10 of the handout which gave a 
list of publications and radio stations with which they have participated. 

 
 President Judge Cox said that she did want to mention that last year their 

attendance was down for total events, but they have to keep in mind that during 
the summer there were a lot of equine events that were cancelled due to the 



Prescott City Council – Joint Meeting with the 
Prescott Frontier Days®, Inc., Board – February 1, 2012                                        Page 3 

equine herpes virus. Otherwise, she thought they would have had a record year 
for events. 

 
 Mayor Kuykendall, referring to Page 5, said that it appears from the numbers that 

Prescott Valley does not like attending the rodeo. President Judge Cox said that 
it was easier to get zip codes for Prescott. Director Borgelt said that it has 
improved a little but looking at the numbers she was disappointed that more were 
not coming to the rodeo. She did note, however, that Chino Valley and 
Prescott Valley residents do provide a lot of their volunteer force so many may be 
coming for free because of their volunteer status. 

 
5. Presentation by City of Prescott – Overview of City-owned land, buildings, and 

leases 
 
 Mr. McConnell said that he thought it would be good to do a presentation on what 

is actually owned by the City, and introduced Mic Fenech to review that 
information. 

 
 Mr. Fenech reviewed a map of the rodeo grounds, Exhibit C attached hereto and 

made a part hereof, and also provided a sheet of information that outlined the 
various buildings and existing leases, Exhibit D attached hereto and made a part 
hereof. 

 
 Mr. Trujillo noted that when the City took over the Pritchard building, the County 

gave them the 80 feet in the center of Barn A for storage, which they have fenced 
off and park their tractor and carts, etc. 

 
 Councilman Blair asked where the money went for the various leases. 

Mr. Fenech said that they were all zero-dollar leases, although most of them do 
spell out maintenance and repair for buildings occupied. 

 
 Councilman Blair asked if the Auto Club indicated on the map was the same Auto 

Club that leases Watson Lake each year. Mr. Trujillo replied that they were. 
 
6. Facilities to be vacated by Yavapai County in June 2012 and future occupancies 
 
 Mr. McConnell said that Mr. Fenech had identified those facilities to be vacated 

and this was to briefly address future occupancy. His sense was to not go into it 
in detail this evening, but there were some City departments that were interested 
in using certain areas. He said that if there was interest on the part of Prescott 
Frontier Days® he would suggest that they have Mr. Trujillo send a letter and 
make a written request. He said that the City would do the same thing on the part 
of the County. He said that his suggestion to the Council would be that if there 
was anything left over that it be offered to the public and try to generate some 
revenue, for use in a way that would be compatible with the use of the grounds 
and the existing leases. 



Prescott City Council – Joint Meeting with the 
Prescott Frontier Days®, Inc., Board – February 1, 2012                                        Page 4 

 
 Mayor Kuykendall said that they need to establish some ground rules on how 

they were going to do business. He said that tonight was an opportunity to 
discuss those things together, but anything that follows up should be conducted 
between Mr. Trujillo and Mr. McConnell. 

 
 Councilman Kuknyo asked who owned the ticket booth. Mr. Trujillo said that was 

owned by Prescott Frontier Days®. Mr. Trujillo added that they need to keep in 
mind that in talking about the Mackin Building, the grandstands have no 
restrooms except for those in the Mackin Building so every event they put on 
where the grandstand is used, the restrooms in the Mackin Building are needed. 

 
 Councilman Lamerson asked if the Prescott Frontier Days® owned the land that 

the ticket booth was on. Mr. Trujillo said that they did not; all of the land belonged 
to the City. He said that they own two or three buildings, the ticket booth, tool 
sheds, etc. but they do not own the land on which they sit. 

 
 Councilman Blair said that Parcel 3 has one sign on it that indicates the rodeo, 

and he asked who owned the sign. Mr. Trujillo said that Prescott Frontier Days® 
owned the sign, but the parcel belonged to the City. He said that the billboard 
sign on Miller Valley Road is owned by a family trust and they rent the billboard 
from them. He said that the trust owns that sign/property as well as the old 
Chuy’s property. 

 
7. Repairs to Grandstands prior to 2012 World’s Oldest Rodeo® 
 
 Mr. McConnell said that there have been discussions during prior budget 

sessions of the City, and his understanding is that the repairs to the grandstands 
consist of two items—1) concrete work on the steps to remedy a trip hazard and 
2) the awning requires some work. 

 
 He said that for the current budget year the City budgeted $60,000 and they 

would propose to go ahead with those improvements unless there was any 
direction to the contrary, but they need to discuss the scope of the work. 

 
 Mr. McConnell said that the ADA may get in on the stairs, but it does not make 

sense that they would be precluded to making improvements because they 
cannot comply with the ADA. He said that the proposal was to do the work in 
conjunction with the rodeo and get it done in the most efficient, cost-effective way 
before the 2012 rodeo. 

 
 Mr. Trujillo said that sounded good to them. He said that May 1 is when they start 

all of their big events so it would be to their advantage if that was done prior to 
May 1. 

 



Prescott City Council – Joint Meeting with the 
Prescott Frontier Days®, Inc., Board – February 1, 2012                                        Page 5 

 Councilman Blair asked if the work would be done in-house by the City. 
Mr. McConnell said that some may be done in-house, but the most potential snag 
is the ADA issue. 

 
 Councilman Kuknyo added that even if the stairs were not made that way there 

was a handicapped area and parking area as well. 
 
 Councilman Lamerson asked who owned Prescott Frontier Days®. Mr. Trujillo 

said that it was a membership organization, owned by its members. 
 
8. Lease between City and Prescott Frontier Days®, Inc. – discussion of items for 

possible update 
 
 Mr. McConnell said that this was placed on the agenda to provide an opportunity 

for discussion, if any, pertaining to the lease which runs through 2017. He said 
that the only item that jumps out to him for potential amendment, or a separate 
agreement, is if Prescott Frontier Days® makes a written request to occupy 
additional space. He did not know if that would be an amendment or a separate 
agreement. Mr. Kidd said that it could go either way. 

 
 Mayor Kuykendall said that it would go through Mr. Trujillo and Mr. McConnell. 
 
 President Judge Cox said that they would love to extend it for another 99 years 

to have the tradition continue. 
 
 Mr. Trujillo said that the importance of the arena, grandstands, and ambiance is it 

is really a very historic structure. The arena itself is where modern day rodeo 
started. He said that a few years ago he put together a team roping school and 
one of the participants made a comment that the arena was an idol to 
professional rodeo. He had never thought of it that way but whether they have 
the most money up or not, it is a prestigious thing to come to Prescott and 
compete. 

 
 Councilman Blair asked about moving the bull by the hospital closer to the Rodeo 

Grounds. Mr. Trujillo said that they would take it there. He added that the statute 
in front of City Hall belongs to the Prescott Frontier Days®. Councilman Blair said 
that the bull needs to be somewhere to be enjoyed and he would ask someone to 
address that issue. It was agreed that Mr. McConnell and Mr. Trujillo would work 
that out. 

 
 Mayor Kuykendall said that the bronze at City Hall will need to be discussed 

because the Prescott Area Arts Trust believes that they own it. Mr. Trujillo said 
that they have told him many times that they had money to fund moving it and 
they would like to move it sooner than later. 

 



Prescott City Council – Joint Meeting with the 
Prescott Frontier Days®, Inc., Board – February 1, 2012                                        Page 6 

9. City Transient Occupancy (Bed) Tax allocation to Prescott Frontier Days®, Inc., 
for promotion 

 
 Mr. McConnell said that the list provided, Exhibit E attached hereto and made a 

part hereof, indicated the bed tax allocations for FY12. He said that there was 
$20,000 funded out of the bed tax allocated for marketing. He said that they will 
shortly begin the FY13 budget and the list would be the subject of additional 
discussion at that time and Prescott Frontier Days® was welcome to participate in 
that process. 

 
 Director Schwartz said that they would be interested in something along the lines 

of a multi-year contract, similar to the Whiskey Off-Road. Mayor Kuykendall said 
that Council does not have the ability to commit into the future. He said that there 
was no such contract in place with them. 

 
10. Rodeo Grounds Master Plan 
 
 Mr. McConnell said that the City has not done any further work on a master plan 

and they were not proposing to do anything with it any time soon. Before they 
embarked on a Master Plan process they would go at it from a different direction, 
identifying the key stakeholders and determining the scope and planning. It 
would be a real master plan looking at the use of the grounds, recognizing 
tenants, looking at the economic engine that it is and could be. Unless the 
Council gives direction, they will not be doing anything on a master plan in the 
near future. 

 
 Mr. Trujillo said that for the past several years he has gotten copies of two or 

three different master plans, from different Boards of Directors. He said that he 
was glad to hear that they would be involved in a master plan as one of the key 
stakeholders. 

 
 Councilman Blair asked at what point in time the City would recognize the fact 

that the County was going to move out and they needed to get serious about 
usage of the property. Mayor Kuykendall said that as time goes on it will be 
addressed. Mr. McConnell said that his sense was that they would be looking at 
it more closely with Prescott Frontier Days® and anything which came up from 
either side of the table would be referred to either Board and/or Council. 

 
11. Other items of mutual interest re Rodeo Grounds  
 
 Councilman Blair said that this was a huge piece of property and he believed that 

the City needed to consider whether they have a liaison with Prescott Frontier 
Days®. 

 



Prescott City Council – Joint Meeting with the 
Prescott Frontier Days®, Inc., Board – February 1, 2012                                        Page 7 

 Mayor Kuykendall said that would be a great communication vehicle only, but 
since they were a Board and the City was a Council they do not try to do 
business that way; they do business via management. 

 
 Mayor Kuykendall thanked the Board for the opportunity to meet with them. All 

voiced appreciation for the opportunity to sit down and have good dialogue. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 There being no further business to be discussed, the Joint Meeting of the 

Prescott City Council and Prescott Frontier Days®, Inc., Board held February 1, 
2012, adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 

 
 
 
       _______________________________  
       MARLIN D. KUYKENDALL, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                        
                  
 
 


	PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL
	JOINT MEETING WITH THE PRESCOTT
	WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2012

